

**Article VI Conduct On Club Property**

**Section 1** – No Strong or Intoxicating Drinks or Illegal Drugs of any style, Shape Or Form Shall Be allowed on the club Premises. If Any Member of the said club violates the law, They Shall be punished by suspension by the club.

**Section 2** – The Rifle range will be closed on the first day of the small game season, on the first day of the rifle deer season, and on any special days designated by the club.

**Section 3** – All vehicles must use the main roads only. No trial bikes, snowmobiles, or Four Wheelers shall be allowed on the Archery course's or the rifle Range except for work details.

**Section 4-** No wood cutting shall be permitted except by club permission.

**Section 5-** Only Members and their immediate family members, and their guests shall be permitted to use the club grounds, with the exception of club sponsored events open to the public. Members are responsible for their Guests actions while on the club grounds.

**Section 6-** The Disposal of any non club generated materials of any kind on the club property, with out the prior approval of the board of Directors is prohibited. Violators will be required to remove any such material at their expense and will be subject to any legal penalties incurred. Repeated violations will result in termination of their membership.

**Section 7-** It Is the responsibility of all club members to keep the club Security combinations confidential.

**Steelstown Gunning Club**  
**Range Rules**

\*Range Hours are weekdays dawn to dusk and Sundays 8:00 A.M to one Half Hour Before sunset.

\*Ranges May Be closed during Specific events at the club.

\* Range is limited to Club Members only, persons under the age of 16 must be supervised by an adult Member.

\*Membership card must be on the person and displayed upon the request of any club member or Officer.

\*When more then one person is using the range, All SHOOTING shall be coordinated to insure the safety of all persons.

\*Persons using the range shall clean up any debris they created, including spent casings and targets used on backboards and empty containers.

\*Persons using the range do so at their own risks and assume responsibility for their actions.

\*Use of Shotguns with slug ammunition for sighting in purposes will be permitted on the range only. Shotgun Pattering should be done using the pattern target board, south of the clubhouse.

\* NO ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES permitted on club property.

\*NO FULL AUTOMATIC FIREARMS PERMITTED.

\* No firearms based on a .50 caliber B.M.G (Browning Machine Gun) cartridge will be permitted on the range.

**Anyone violating any of these rules, or using firearms in an unsafe manner may be subject to suspension or revocation of all membership privileges.**

**Any Criminal actions will be dealt with according to the local laws**

**CONSTITUTION  
AND  
BYLAWS  
OF THE**

**STEELSTOWN  
GUNNING CLUB**



Steelstown Gunning Club  
659 Steelstown Road  
Annville Pa 17003

[www.Steelstown.com](http://www.Steelstown.com)

[SteelstownGunningClub@gmail.com](mailto:SteelstownGunningClub@gmail.com)  
717-838-9499

(Revised January 2021)

## **Steelstown Gunning Club**

1. The Purpose or purposes for which this club is formed is to promote, encourage, advance, and improve the sports of hunting and fishing. To preserve, protect, maintain and restock wildlife, to promote and develop the art of gunning and shooting, to encourage and foster harmony between sportsman and land owners, to maintain a sportsman's club and facilities for cultivating social and recreational enjoyment for its members.

2. This club does not contemplate pecuniary gain or profit incidental or otherwise for its members.

3. This club is to be organized on a non-stock basis

### **Article I - Officers**

**Section 1-** The officers of this club shall consist of the Following: President, Vice President, Secretary, and Treasurer. These officers shall be elected for the term of one year.

**Section 2-** The Board of Directors of this club shall consist of the President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, and five (5) additional members in good standing. The five additional members shall be elected for terms of five years, one being elected each year.

### **Article II- Committees**

**Section 1 –** Regular committees shall be appointed to terms of one year.

**Section 2-** Sub committees may be appointed when deemed Necessary to assist.

**Section 3-** Special committees may be appointed for a period of time required to perform the duties for which they have been appointed.

### **Article III- Meetings**

**Section 1-** The regular meetings shall be held monthly on the second Monday of each month.

**Section 2-** Special Meetings may be held at the request of the board of Directors or at the request of the majority of members present at any meeting.

**Section 3-** A quorum of five (5) senior members is necessary to transact any business at any regular or special meeting of the club.

### **Article IV - Finance**

**Section 1-** In the event it becomes necessary to raise special funds for the advancement of the club, the Board of Directors shall recommend a method to the members of the club, at any regular or special meeting, for their approval.

### **Article V- Amendments**

**Section 1-** Amendments to this constitution must be proposed in writing at a regular or special meeting and signed by the Board of Directors of the club. The said proposed amendments shall then be carried until the next regular or subsequent meeting where, to secure adoption. It must Receive the votes of the majority of the members present.

## **BYLAWS OF THE STEELSTOWN GUNNING CLUB**

### **Article I Nomination and Election**

**Section 1-**Nomination of candidates for the elective officers shall be made by members at the regular monthly meeting in August. Election Shall be by ballot at the annual meeting in September, and the candidate receiving the majority of the votes cast shall be declared elected by the President. In the event no one receives the majority, a second ballot shall be cast. If no one receives the majority on the second ballot, then the third election shall be held using the two highest candidates from the previous ballot.

**Section 2-** Vacancies in any office due to death, resignation or otherwise, shall be filled by the board of directors whose action shall be valid until the next annual election.

### **Article II- Duties of Officers**

**Section 1-** The President shall be the presiding officer at all regular and special meetings, as prescribed in the constitution and By-Laws. He shall affix his signature to all Legal Documents of the club. He shall be Chairman Of the Board Of Directors and executive officer of all regular and special committees. He shall attend to all other matters coming under his jurisdiction as President.

**Section 2-** The Vice President shall act as President in the absence of the President.

**Section 3-** The Secretary shall keep an accurate record of all the proceedings of both the club meetings and the Board Of Directors meetings. He shall attend to all other duties coming under his Jurisdiction, and shall appoint a member in good standing to preside at a meeting in the absence of the President and Vice President.

**Section 4-** The Treasurer shall keep an accurate record of all money received and dispersed by him, showing specifically for what purpose expended. He shall deposit all money belonging to the club in a bank, in the name of Steelstown Gunning Club, subject to withdraw by check, by the treasurer of the club only, only when authorized by the president and the secretary. He shall attend to all other matters coming under his jurisdiction. The Treasurer's records shall be subject to audit at the end of each election year.

### **Article III- Membership**

**Section 1-** Persons attending club meetings during the time their application is being presented can take part in general discussion, but can only vote on matters taken up after they have been accepted into the club.

**Section 2-** New members must be recommended by two members in good standing and shall be admitted into the club by the approval of a majority of the members present.

**Section 3-** Persons who were members of the club and have paid dues for forty (40) consecutive years shall be considered life members and will no longer be required to pay any further dues.

**Section 4-** Any Person having had an adult membership for two (2) or more consecutive years can apply for a life membership. The cost of this membership will then be fifteen (15) times the current annual rate of dues and will be subject to the approval of the Board Of Directors. A life Membership shall include a spouse and revert to the spouse in case of Death.

**Section 5-** The club will waiver the dues for full time military club members while they are serving on active duty.

**Section 6-** Persons sixteen (16) years of age and older shall be eligible for adult club membership.

### **Article IV- Conduct Of Members**

**Section 1-** Any willful disregard or violation of the Game and Fish Laws, by any member will be just and sufficient cause for expulsion of that person. This action is to be taken at a Board of Directors meeting when such charges are substantiated.

### **Article Conduct of Meetings**

**Section 1-** All meetings of the club shall be conducted according to Parliamentary rules. A majority vote except where otherwise specified at any regular or special meeting shall transact business.

**Section 2-** Any individual who shall at any meeting make use of improper language, misbehave in any manor, disrupt or attempt to disrupt the meeting shall be expelled. Members present shall determine the course of action.









